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         February 25, 2019 
 

 
 
 
 
Mr. Matthew S. McClure 
Executive Director, Operations 
Specialty Granules, LLC 
13424 Pennsylvania Avenue, Suite 303 
Hagerstown, MD 21742 
 

Re:  Notice of Intent to Sue for Clean Water Act Violations at the Specialty 
Granules Charmian Facility in Blue Ridge Summit, Pennsylvania 

 
Dear Mr. McClure:  

 This letter constitutes a Notice of Violation and Intent to File Suit under Section 505 of the 
federal Clean Water Act (“CWA”), 33 U.S.C. § 1365, for the ongoing unlawful discharge of 
suspended solids from the sediment pond at Specialty Granules LLC’s Charmian facility, located 
at 1455 Old Waynesboro Road Blue Ridge Summit, PA 17214. These include discharges from 
both Outfall 001 and seeps, which bypass the sediment pond’s treatment system. The unlawful 
discharges were observed in Miney Branch and an adjacent wetland area by Potomac Riverkeeper 
Network (PRKN) staff on November 20, 2018, November 21, 2018, November 22, 2018, 
November 28, 2018, November 30, 2018, and December 3, 2018. Pictures of these discharges 
(attached to this letter) show a white to green cloudy discharge in the Miney Branch and adjacent 
wetland originating from Specialty Granules LLC’s sediment pond. The Miney Branch is a 
tributary of Tom’s Creek, which flows to the Monocacy River.  These photographs are evidence 
of violations of Specialty Granules’ NPDES permit PA0009059/ Mining Permit No. 6477SM5, 
issued under Section 402 of the Clean Water Act, 33 U.S.C. § 1342. Therefore, the unlawful 
discharges also violate 33 U.S.C. § 1311. 

Following 60 days from the date of this notice letter, PRKN intends to file suit against 
Specialty Granules as the operator and permittee of the Charmian facility for the illegal discharges.  
PRKN will ask the Court to grant injunctive relief to halt the illegal discharges and to assess civil 
penalties.  

Potomac Riverkeeper Network 

 Potomac Riverkeeper, Inc., d/b/a Potomac Riverkeeper Network, is a nonprofit 
environmental organization that protects and safeguards the ecological integrity of the Potomac 
River watershed, which includes the Potomac, Upper Potomac, and Monocacy Rivers and their 
tributaries.  The health of the Potomac River is of critical importance to the nearly six million 
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people who depend upon it for drinking water, as well as those who use the River and its tributaries 
for recreation, and recreational and commercial fishing.  PRKN’s work has helped communities 
in Virginia, Maryland, the District of Columbia, Pennsylvania, and West Virginia.  Our successes 
range from compelling a Virginia sewage treatment plant to reduce its annual nutrient pollution by 
60,000 pounds annually, to eliminating pollution from rural septic tanks to tributaries of the 
Potomac River. PRKN files this notice letter on behalf of its members who are being harmed by 
the discharge of pollutants described below. 

 PRKN has standing to bring this action because its members depend upon Miney Branch 
for drinking water and other uses as well as recreational activities, such as camping, hunting, 
fishing, and natural appreciation.  See Friends of the Earth v. Laidlaw Envtl. Servs., 528 U.S. 167, 
181 (2000) (“An association has standing to bring suit on behalf of its members when its members 
would otherwise have standing to sue in their own right, the interest at stake are germane to the 
organization’s purpose, and neither the claim asserted nor the relief requested requires the 
participation of individual members in the lawsuit.”). PRKN’s members would use Miney Branch 
more often, and for additional uses, if not for the discoloration caused by Specialty Granules’ 
permit violations. 

The Clean Water Act 

 The Clean Water Act prohibits the discharge of pollutants from a point source to waters of 
the United States except in compliance with a NPDES permit.  33 U.S.C. §§ 1311, 1342.  The 
CWA defines “pollutant” to include “chemical wastes” and “industrial…waste,” among other 
things.  42 U.S.C. § 1362(6).  “Point source” is defined as “any discernible, confined and discrete 
conveyance, including but not limited to any pipe … channel, tunnel, conduit” or “discrete fissure 
… from which pollutants are or may be discharged.” 33 U.S.C. § 1362(14).  The Charmian facility 
discharges pollutants in the form of suspended solids via Outfall 001 to a green stone channel. 
Outfall 001 constitutes a “pipe …channel, tunnel, conduit” or “discrete fissure … from which 
pollutants are or may be discharged.” 33 U.S.C. § 1362(14). Here, the Charmian facility discharges 
from Outfall 001 and seeps into Miney Branch and then Tom’s Creek. Thus, as described in detail 
below, the Facility’s unpermitted discharges violate the CWA.   

 Under federal and Pennsylvania law, no person may discharge pollutants to waters of the 
United States or the waters of Maryland via a point source without a NPDES permit.  33 U.S.C. § 
1311(a); 25 Pa. Code § 92a.1. Although the CWA is a federal law, each state may, upon approval 
by the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (“EPA”) pursuant to 42 U.S.C. § 1342(b) and 40 
C.F.R. § 123.61, receive delegated authority to administer the NPDES permit program. The 
Pennsylvania Department of Environmental Protection (“DEP”) was approved to administer the 
NPDES program by EPA on June 30, 1978. 

Permitted Discharges 

 DEP initially issued NPDES Permit PA0009059/ Mining Permit 6477SM5 (“Permit”) to 
Specialty Granules, Inc. for its Charmian Facility on November 6, 1981 with renewals issued on 
August 2, 1996, July 31, 2001, May 4, 2006, and May 10, 2013. According to DEP records, the 
current Permit expires on November 7, 2019. The Permit authorizes Specialty Granules to 
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discharge treated mine drainage from its Charmian Facility mine drainage sediment pond through 
Outfall 001 to Miney Branch and Tom’s Creek. This discharge is subject to average, maximum, 
and instantaneous maximum discharge limitations as well as various sampling and reporting 
requirements. Additionally, the Permit imposes condition 3(b), stating that Specialty Granules 
“must comply with applicable water quality standards, including the narrative standards found at 
25 Pa. Code § 93.6.” This includes a requirement to control “substances that produce color” as 
well as turbidity. Id. § 93.6(b).  

Discharges from the Facility into Miney Branch Violate the Clean Water Act 

PRKN’s investigation reveals ongoing point source discharges into Miney Branch and an 
adjacent wetland that cause a white to green cloud.  Pictures of these discharges are included with 
this letter. Neighboring property owners stated that these discolorations have persisted since at 
least 2010, have become more frequent over time, and are worst for a period of approximately one 
to two weeks after rainfalls. Thus, Specialty Granules’ unlawful discharges are, and have been, 
ongoing for several years.  

PRKN also has evidence that Specialty Granules is discharging suspended solids from the 
base of its sediment pond through one or more natural and/or engineered discharge points. These 
may include discharges from a hose originating from the base of the pond or discharges that flow 
from the toe of the pond. Discharges from these points have also caused a white to green cloud in 
Miney Branch and the adjacent wetland area. These discharges are not authorized by Specialty 
Granules’ Permit, and therefore constitute unlawful, unpermitted discharges in violation of the 
CWA. Further, these discharges constitute an unlawful “bypass” under the Permit’s terms and 
federal law. See Permit, Definitions § 1(a) (defining a “bypass” as an “intentional diversion of 
waste streams from any portion of a treatment facility.”). Under the Permit’s standard federal 
conditions, bypasses of Specialty Granules’ sediment pond are prohibited, absent certain 
conditions that Potomac Riverkeeper do not believe to apply here. See Permit, Standard Federal 
Conditions § 2(m)(3) (incorporating requirements under 25 Pa. Code § 92a.41(m) and 40 C.F.R. 
§ 122.41(a)(13)). 

Federal Law Authorizes Potomac Riverkeeper to File Suit Against Specialty Granules  

The CWA has a “citizen suit” provision, which authorizes “any citizen” to file suit against 
any other person that violates the CWA. 33 U.S.C. § 1365(a)(1).  Specialty Granules is a “person” 
within the meaning of the CWA.  This letter serves to comply with the CWA notice requirements 
under 33 U.S.C. § 1365(b)(1)(A) and EPA’s implementing regulations. 

 The names, addresses, and telephone numbers of each person giving notice in this letter 
are:  

 Nancy Stoner, President 
Potomac Riverkeeper Network  
3070 M Street NW 
Washington, DC 20007 

 (202) 888-2037 
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 Please address all communications regarding this notice to Potomac Riverkeeper’s counsel.  
The name, address, and telephone number of counsel representing Potomac Riverkeeper is:  

 Phillip Musegaas 
 Vice President of Programs and Litigation 
 Potomac Riverkeeper Network 
 3070 M Street NW 
 Washington, DC 20007 
 (202) 888-4929 
 phillip@prknetwork.org   
 
 We intend, following the 60-day notice period, to file a citizen suit in federal court against 
the defendant, Specialty Granules, under Section 505(a) of the CWA for the violations outlined 
above.  Potomac Riverkeeper also reserves its right to assert any other applicable cause of action 
under state and federal laws in addition to the CWA.  

 Please do not hesitate to contact me if you wish to discuss this notice letter.  

 
Respectfully,  

 
Phillip Musegaas 
Vice President of Programs and Litigation 
202-888-4929 
Phillip@prknetwork.org  
 
cc:   
 
David Buente 
Jim Wedeking 
Sidley Austin LLP 
 
Andrew Wheeler 
Acting Administrator 
Environmental Protection Agency 
William Jefferson Clinton Building 
MC 1101A 
1200 Pennsylvania Ave., NW 
Washington, DC 20460 
 
Cosmo Servidio 
Regional Administrator 
Environmental Protection Agency, Region 3 
MC 3RA00 
1650 Arch Street 
Philadelphia, PA 19103 
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Patrick McDonnell 
Secretary 
Pennsylvania Department of Environmental Protection 
400 Market Street 
Harrisburg, PA 17101 
 

 


